{
|
{ The Peoples Natural Gas |
l
l

D

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
PUBLIC UTILITY COMMIS3ION

S m, Ml WS e el AR S ek R M e S b abe Sen e o e e N Ve i e

James L. Finello

Vs . Docket No.: C-20065819

d/b/a Dominion Peoples
'Ihltial Hearlng

Pittsburgh State Office Building
11tk Floor Hearing Room

DOCUMENT oo timesty areme )
FOLDER June 14, 2006 |
' Commencina at 9:57 a.m.
BEFORE ! N
MICHBAEL A. NBMEC,’Administrative‘Law Judge

| APPEARANCES :

; OPEANTIN T
HORACE P. PAYNE, JR., Esguire %%km&géﬂl\ fm
Uominion Resources Services, Inc.
Z2lst Floor JUN 1 b 2006

624 Liberty Avenue
Pittsburgh, PA 15222-31.C

For the Respondent PﬂMﬂ”@lﬁ!ﬁYCOMMS&ON

{1 el 1ARYe CURCAY

: ‘ REPORTER: KYLEY E. MCCCWIN
JUL 1 8 2006
Any reproduction of this transcript

is prohibited without authorizatiocn
by the certifying agency.

- ORGINAL

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908 -




T2 RIEREE &« JEN VR 9% SHRNE % S

WITNESS
Finello

Booker

INDEX TO WITNESSES

DIRECT CROSS REDIRECT RECROSS
| 10 |
14 31

Sargent’s Court Reporﬁing/Servicé, Inc.
(B14) 536-88508 '




Yo An

16

17

19}
20 |
21|
22
23|
24 |
25 |

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

NUMBER - FOR IDENTIFICATION

IN EVIDENCE

For the Complainant:

NONE

NUMBER "FOR _IDENTIFICATION

IN EVIDENCE

For the Respondent:

No. 1 {Picture) 5
No. 2 (Picture) 277
No. 3 (Picture) | 29

42
42
42

Sargent’s Court Reporting'Service, Inc.

{8.4) 536-8908




-t

oo TN & L R

B v e e G et e o M A bkt i G5 G i K B S, e N N e M SAG e e e R e R e e e e G W el A, R M e i it S e Wi b e e i

JUDGE NEMEC:

This morning we have case caption James

L. Finello?

MR. FINELLO:

Finello {corrects pronunciation).

JUDGE NEMEC:

Finello versus the Peoples Natural Gas

|Company. 1It's docketed at C-20065819. Present in the

hearing room is Mr. Finello. Also present is Attorney

| Horace Payne representing the Peoples Natural Gas

Company. My name's Michael Nemec, I'm an

Administrative Law Judge with the Penasylvania Public

Utility Commission. 1I've been assigned to conduct the

initial hearing in this complaint proceeding. The way

we're going to broceed is that we'll take yeur

|testimony first, Mr. --- help me again.

MR. FINELLO:

Finello.

JUDGE NEMEC:

Finello. As you present your testimony,

I may have some questions for you. Once you're done,

Mr. Payne may have some gquestions. Once you've

finished your presentation then we'll hear from

Sargentfs Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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Peoples. Each witness who testifies for PeOples; once

' they're finished with their Direct testimony, you may

ask any guestions that you have. And once their

Direct testimony 1is finished, you can present anything

you wish to at the end; okay? You get the first say

and the last say in this. Okay. Siz, I'm géing to

Lask you to raise your right hand.

JAMES L, FINELLO, HAVING FIRST BEEN BULY SWORN,

TESTIFIED AS FOLLCWS:

JUDGE NEMEC:

Okay. Please state your name.
A. James Finello, F-I-N-E-L-L-0.

JUDGE NEMEC:

And yocur address, sir?

A 1819 Woodside Road, Glenshaw, PA 15116.

JUDGE NEMEC:

Okay. So youa've caused a ccmplaint to be

'filéd,against Peoples Natural Gas Campény and I want

you to tell me, in your own words, what your complaint
1s.

A. Over ten years ago, Peoples Natural Gas was doing

some work on the street I live and they‘were doing

' some digging and they crackedkmy driveway. They were

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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responsible, they called me and said they were going

o come back and repair the driveway, the portion that

tthey'd cracked and they did. They sent a contractor

out and they repaired the driveway. This past year,

Shaler Township, the township I live in, changed the

policy that they have to have an external reader for

all the water meters. They come up to install a new
water meter and they were not able to do it because

the shut-off valve, to shut my main water off, 1is

buried in the slab of concrete that they hac replaced.
The water township identified the location of where
the shut-off valve is through some underground meter

device that they have and Mr. Booker had come out to

the house personally and observed the spot where they

say it's buried. It's buried under a piece of

concrete that they had installed.

JUDGE NEMEC:

Okéy; Sir, and what do you want the

Commission to do?

a. Expose the curb feet, that's all T'm asking them

to de. I'm not asking to replace the driveway, do

anything, make a saw cut and come out. I don’t think

lit's my responsibility to repair something that they

did. Tneir records show that,'yau know, === they've

agreed to me that their records show that they did

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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break the sidewalk, they did have a subcontractor

| repair it. You know, make it whole, just make it the

way it was.

JUDGE NEMEC:

Okay.f Bre you currently a customer of

' Peoples Natural Gas?

A. Yes, 1 am. 1L pay my bill every month on time.

CUDGE NEMEC:

Okay. Now were you present when the

contracter repaved your driveway?

A. Was I there? I left the house that day and
wherever 1 went. You know, I don’t know specifically,
you know.

CUDGE NEMEC:

Yes.

B. He showed up in the morring and when I got home at

|the end of that day it was repaired.

CUDGE NEMEC:

Peoples filed an answer in this case,

they also filed a motion to dismiss. Did you receive

“ av¢opy of that motion to dismiss?

{a. Yes.k I mean, they're saying it happened more than
|ten years ago and, Your Honoxr, my feeling is if their
'subcentracter wouid ha#e instailed a meter in the

‘house and-the house blows up ten years later, they

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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have no responsibility in someone's death? I don't

think that's right. I think the passage of time does

not alleviate them from any responsibility and I think

if the Court would rule that, I think it's an
injuSticekof their customers.

JUDGE NEMEC:

That's in the nature of argument; okay?

Right now, I'm interested in trying to develop a

' factual record.

10|

A Sure.
JUDGE NEMEC:

Did you file a response to this motion?

AL I don't believe I did.

JUDGE NEMEC:

Okay. Now when you saw the work that the |

contractor had done, were you aware at that time that
they had covered up the ---2

A. . didn't know whether they moved it, I didn't

‘know. I didn't pay attention to it and it wasn't a

big thing.

JUDGE NEMEC:

At the time that this was done, were you

'awére‘that the shut-off valve for the water supply was

there?

A. Prior to that it was.  Prior to them redoing the

€argent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
‘ (814) 536-8908
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sidewalk. There used to be a shut-off valve in my

sidewalk.

JUDGE NEMEC:

Okay. And that was there when it
was —==72
A. “hat was there priocr ---.

CUDGE NEMEC:

When it was cracked?
A. ~Yes, when it was cracked.

JUDGE NEMEC:

Okay. And I guess the guestion 1is then,
were you aware that is was covered up?

A. At the time, no. I didn't really pay any

‘sttention to it.

JUDGE NEMEC:

Okay.

B And the only reason it come to light was the water

company came to put a new meter in and was unable to
do it. They're the ones that i1dentified the problem.

JUDGE NEMEC:

Okay. So what's involved in uncovering

' this valve?

A. I'm not a contractor. I'm sure a couple saw cuts
or something like that. Mr. Booker was there. I

mean, a couple saw cuts, that's all I'm asking for.

Sargent’ s CourtrRepprting Service, Inc.
(814) 536~8908
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‘Probably costs less than the price of this hearing.

I'm not asking to replace the sidewalk or the driveway

or anything like that.
CUDGE NEMEC:

When did the township notify you that

'they needed access?
A. Sometime this year and 1 dorn't know the exact

date.

JUDGE NEMEC:

In 20067
A. May have been 2005. They sent a letter out.

CUDGE NEMEC:

Okay. Anything elise, sir?

A, Trat's it.

JUDGE NEMEC:
Gkay. Mr. Payne?

ATTORNEY DAYNE:

Yes. Thark you, Your Honor.

| CROSS EXBMINATION
BY ATTORNEY PAYNE:

1 Q. Good morning, sir.

21A. Yes,

0. Sir, you testified that you reside at 1919

Woodside Road?

‘A. Correct.

Sargent’s Court Repofting Service, Inc.
{814) 536-8908
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How long have you resided,at that address?
Since 1980. |
Okay. So you resided there 26 years?

Correct.

And you were there, obviously, when the gas

| company was out doing what it needed to do for its
service line?

AL ves. 1 owned the house at that time, yes.

Q. And over that period of time that you resided

there up until the time that the gas company came and

ldid its work, that water valve, I believe, was that
|exposed?

B Corract.

0. And how often did you use the driveway?

A 1 use the driveway every day, Sir.

kQQ And I would imagine that you shovel the driveway
in the winter time?

4. Yes, I do.

0. And tend to the driveway =—--=~

8.  vYes, I do.

C. ~-=~ during the summer, spring time ---

A, Yes, 1 do..

. =--- when leaves and so forth accumulate? BAnd it's
your testimony that after the gas company completed

,its work, that that valve was covered up?,

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-88C8
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AL Correct.
Q. But you didknot notice it until ten years aftexr?
A. At the time, I thought maybe they moved the valve

into the lawn or did something. I wasn't aware, you

know.

Q. You thought that the gas company moved the valve?

A. The contractor maybe, I didn't really know. I

didn't pay any attention to it, it wasn't an issuve. I

come home, the driveway was fine, they put a new pad

down, it didn't make any difference to me.

0. Do you know who owns the meter at your home?

AL “he meter?
Q. Yes. The natural gas nmeter.
A. > would assume the gas company.

Q. The gas company owns the meter. I think you
testified that if an explosion or something occurred
ten years after the meter was set or whatever that,

you know, whose responsibility would that be, it'd be

‘the gas company’s responsibility?

'A. Absolutely. And I'll give you a reason. I'm a

former homicide detective.
e. Okay.
A. And I investigated a case at a hospital where this

thing was installed improperly.

g. Right.

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(8.4} 536-~8908
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AL 8¢ I'm very aware of what happens.

10, Now the water wvalve, now who would that belong to?

The valve to your water meter?

|a. I believe it belongs to me.

Q. It belongs to you and so it's your responsibility

to maintain it and what have you as the company's
responsibility would be o its facilities, its meter,

and piping, and so forth and sc¢ on?

A. I agree with you, but I'm not the one that buried
it, your contractor did.

. Okay.

ATTORNEY PAYNE:

I believe I'm finished, Your Honor, at
‘this point.

JUDGE NEMEC:

Okay.
ATTORNEY PAYNE:

Okay.
JUDGE NEMEC:

Anything you'd like to add at this point.

‘A, I'd like to ask Mr. Booker a guestion.

 ATTORNEY PAYNE:

It's his turn next. I'm going to put him

lon. I just finished my Cross with you. At this time,

.Your Honpr, I'd like to call Mr. Sdward Boeoker, Jr.

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536~8908
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JUDGE NEMEC:

Ckay. 3ir, please raise your right hand.

EDWARD BGOKER, JR., HAVING FIRST BEEN DULY AFFIRMED,
TESTIFIED AS FOLLOWS: |
JUDGE NEMEC:
You may proceed.

ATTORNEY PAYNE:

Okay. Thank you, Your Honor;

DIRECT EXAMINATION

| BY ATTORNEY PAYNE:

"Q. Mr. Booker, would you state your name for the

record, please?
A. Edward Booker, Jr.
Okay. And sir, by whom are you employed?

Dominicn Peoples.

. And you're employed with Dominior Peoples in what
capacity?

A I'm serior claims agent.

lg. Bnd could you just briefly for the record,

describe your job duties?

1A, T handle claims that come in, property damage

claims that people make whenever the gas company,

through doing work of some kind, damages property or

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 53€-8908 '
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in the event that we've been negligen:t in some way in
carrying out our responsibilities. 1 investigate
those claims and then proceed to advise the company on

' how we should respond to try and settle them or deny

them or however.

Q. And sir, how long have you held your current

position?

4. About 18 years.

l0. And prior to that, who did you work for and what

did you do?

A Prior to that, I worked for Domirnion Peoples and I

was a foreman for the gas company.

Q. So you were out in the field offices ~--

G. ~~= and what have you?

A.  Yes.
Q. Okay. Sir, are you familiar with the complaint of

James L. Finello against Dominion Peoples?

A. Yes, I am,
¢. And you're familiar in what way?
A. I received a letter from Mr. Finello that went to

cur claims department and when I presumed to conduct

‘an investigation, I called him, I spoke with him,

explained to him at that time that T didn't think that

we would be accepting 1iability for something that had |

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc}
‘ (814} 536-8B90C8




s

tw

wE Y

T IR o

16

‘happenéd that long ago —--~.

'Q; Mr. Booker, excuse me, just one questioh heréf/
,Whenvycu were contacted by Mr. Finello, are you
referring to the letter of October 3lst, 2005 which ié
;atﬁaﬁﬁeﬁ to Mr. Fipello's complaint? |

iA. Yes. |
Q. Okay. And you were explaining that‘yau received
this 1ettar and you investigated the compiaint?

AL Yes. I started an investigation by Checking ocur

files to see --- in his letter, he indicated that we

had daﬁe wqfk ten years ago, so I checked ~ur files
and he was right. We had done that in 1994 when wé
renewed our portiocn of the service that goes to his
property. |

Q. When you say renewed what, in lay térms, would
that mean?

A. We went in and we replaced our piping underground.

' {In his particular case at his residence, the main line

is on the opposite side of the street from where his

)lhouse sits and so we renewed the line that goes undex
fthe street into the curb valve that feeds his service
fline. He has a service line after that curbbvalve

 that goes from the curb valve back to the meter that's
at his house. And so in ;994, we renewed our service

51that goes from the curb valve over Lo the main line.

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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Q. And did we, in the process cf doing that, disturb

his driveway?
B. “here's a possibility we could have done that.
I'm going to say I accepted what he said because we

don't have any records that I could lock at that would

;veniﬁy to tell me whéthér‘crvnct.we replaced a section
of sidewalk, we wouldn't retain those records for that
period of time.

0. Okay. What records would you retain?

 A.' We retain records as to the material that we use

| to install that service line, we Xeep those kind of

records. We keep records on measurements so that we

can locate our curb valve, we keep raco:ﬁs on the,
once again, measurements on the length from where the
curb valve is to the main line, also they take
|triargular measurements from the corners of his héusé

1710

r of any house they take triangular measurements and

 5¢ we keep ail those kinds of records. We have those

kinds of records on file sc that in the event that we

would have to go in and find those facilities we can

find them. |
Q. Okay. Let's assume that the company did disturb a

| portion of the Complainant's driveway, what then is

the company's pkocedare? What would they nave done to

restore the driveway?

Sargent’s Court Reportlng Servi ce, Inc.
(814) 536~8908
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'A. The employees that actually do the work, they

would nave been the ones that would go out and
would've dug it up initially to make the renewal of
the service lines. Whenever they finish their work;

they would turn in a restoration slip indicating that

there was damage done to a driveway and that it needed
‘to be repalred so they would also usually turn in

;dimeasisns and different things like that. That's

given to the foreman and then the foreman turns it

‘over Lo & contractor; okay?' And the contracter then

goes out and does that work ftor us.

those documentations, the documen-ations that the
actual Dominicon Peoples workers would have submitted
to the foreman? Were those documents retrievable?

&. No, they weren't. We don't have those documents

at this time.

Cc. Okay. Well again, in hypothetical, let's assume

' that these documents were turned over to the

supervisor and the supervisor then --- he engaged a

contractor. Is this contracted work that the company

normally wou.d do?

A. Yes. W%hat the company does is, I'm going to say
at the beginning of the year, but I don’t know axactly
when it's done, but they bid out this work to

Sargent’s Court Reporting SQrvice, Inc.
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contractors and so contractors bid on them. And they
have conﬁractor* that bid on concrete work, they also

Chave contractors that bid on ldwn restoraticn; okayﬂf

And 50 the lowest bidder gets it and then they would
handlefall of our concreté restoration work, they

would handle all of that for the period of time that

they won the bid for; okay? But depenﬁing on who wins

a bid in various years, you could have a different

contractcr doing your concrete work every year; okay?
Or however Lung the contracts would go with the

contractors, it might go for a two year period, it

might go for a one year period before they re-bid it,

but usually there's a certain period of time and then

they re-bid and the low bidder wins and that's who

handles your concrete work for a partxcular area.

Q. Okay. All rlght. You basically described fhe

'general bidding process. Have you ever been privy to
' the cancract themselves? Have you had an opportunity
to a‘c;c:;k at a contract that would go out to a contactor

to restore driveways, roadways, highways, what have

you?
A Yes, I have.
¢. And are you familiar in your capacity as

investigator and as a foreman who actually handled

these matters, are you familiar with the time span for

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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which these contracts are tied in, in terms of

' liability, after a contractor has done his or hér
work?

'A. Yes. We hcld the contractor responsible for their
work for two years.

Q. Okay. 1Is there any magic’with the two or are you

familiar with that or =--=~7

A. It's my understanding, it is tied into statute of
limitations for someone being able to file 2 lawsuit.
Q. Okay.

A. That's my understanding of it, I don't know if

\that's accurate or not, but ~=-
Q. Okay.

'A. === all I know is that'’'s how long we hold our

contractors responsible for their work, two years.

Q. Ard typically, would the contractor --- what is

the contractor to do relative to the disturbance that

the company has created? What is the basic charge to
do?

A. Basically they are to go in and to make the

property the way it was whenever we fourd it or as
' close as possible to the way that we found it. So
they would go in and there are certain --- we have

certain criteria that they are suppcséd te use, for

like say thelr concrete mix and if they're doing ~---

Sargent’s Court Reparting,Service, Inc.
(814) 536-89%08




@ w s W N e

-3

21
there's a different mix or a different way that they
would restore a sidewalk, for example, and a driveway;
okay? But it the claimant's driveway had rods in it,
fﬁr éxample, okay, then they would be reguired to
replace it with rods in it; okay? The thickness of a
driveway 1s usually a littler bit thicker than a
sidewalk area, okay, so they wculd be required to do
f that tow, also.

910. Sc there's basic specifications that the company
has in place ---

'A. That's correct.

Q. -~~~ for these contracts?

A. That's correct.

lo. Arnd Mr. Booker, if in fact the wcrk was not‘done
to standard, is it normally the company's practice to
‘put the contractor on notice that samétbing'has to be
:changed around or done differently?

A. That's correct. When a contractor is done with
:his work usually he submits an invoice for payment;
lokay, to the company and usually it's the charge of
'fthe foreman in the area to go ércand ang, you kncw,
just take a look. Just in general, just CQ‘verify
that the contractor has done the work that he
submitted his invoice for and thén the foreman will

'ckaykit and then the contractor gets paid.

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-89C8
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1Q‘ Okay. Now that's with regard to the company, does

the property owner? You had experiences where a

property owner has a say, for example, you know, that

grade is now causing water to flow into my garage or

flow into my basement or what have you, various other

problems that may have occurred in the process of

restoring the driveway or the pavement?

P

A. Right. It's not unusual, I mean, the amount of

work that we do, I see more claims than most people, I

guess you could say. But I think in general, we don't

get that many claims over all; okay? But it's not

unusual for us to get a claim concerning a
contractor's work, it may not be done up to the
property owner's satisfaction.

O Okay. Now Mr. Finello had ~~~ when he submitted

his claim to you ~-- you've heard his testimony today,

what he wanits, and I suspect it's been basically the

same throughout, that he just wants someone to cut in

and expcse that valve. What's the company's position?
. y N -

Why‘won‘t the company engageyln this particular

activity?

A. I base my decisions based on liabkility --- the

company bases the decision on liability and whether or

not we've been negligent in some way:; okay, whether or

not we've done something wrong. And as I looked at

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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this situation and I followed basically whatkhé had
said aé far as like us doing the work there in 1994
and damaging his driveway and thén having i1t replaced,

okay, once again I don't see where we did anything

wrong, we followed what we should've done. If we

damaged somebody's driveway, we should’ve replaced,

which is what he says we did and we did that. Where I

uess we disagree is that he's saying that we were
] g

negligent because ouxr contractor covered up his water

valve or water curb box. My position is thal ourx

contractor wouldn't have covered it up if it hadn't

‘been exposed beforehand; okay? And if it would have

been exposed beforehard and he didn't see it there

afterwards, okay, he could've made a claim at that

time, okay? But nothing was said for this period of

time. |

Q. And also Mr. Booker, I think it was yout testimony
that'the Superviscr or foreman would be out at the
property. Would tha:’person have a look az what was

done prior to work commencing? I meéan normally.

A. In some cases, yes, in some cases they may not. I

don't know what the circumstances were that required

this renewal, I mean, if it was a leaky situation. I

' couldn't guarantee you that a foreman had been down

there to look this over beforehand.

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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Q. Mr. Booker, you said that you went out to Mr.

|Finello's property?

A, Yes, at his request. In our initial conveisation
I did explain to him that I thought with the amount of
time that hag pasSed that we wouldn't accept lzability-
for this. He suggested that I needed tc}come out and
take a look at it and after we talked for awhile I

told him that I would come oat. So I made

arrangements to meet with him one day out at his

propérty.

Q. Okay. And do you recall the month, the year?

A T believe it was November of 2005. 1 didn't bring

the exact date, =---
':_Q& OkaYa
A. ~«-= but I know we met in November. I'm pretty

sure it was November 2005.
Q. And as part of your investigaticn, did you take

pictures?

‘A.‘ Yes, I did take photographs.
ol You took photographs?

A. Yes.

ATTORNEY PAYNE:

Now, Your Honor, I'm going to pass out,
just so Your Honor will get a better ---.

JUDGE NEMEC:

Sargent’s Court Reporting'Service, Inc.
{Bi4) 536-8908 ~
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Show them to Mr. Finello first.

ATTORNEY PAYNE:

Sure. Is that your propezty?

MR. FINELLO:
My property, yes.
ATTORNEY PAYNE:

Your Honor, I'm passing out what I would

‘askx be marked as Dominion Exhibit number One.

JUDGE NEMEC:

It may be so identified.
(Dominion Peoples Exhibit One marked for

identification.)

BY ATTORNEY PAYNE:

Q,' And I'm going to ask you Mr. Booker, if you will,

can you tell us what that picture depicts?

A Well I'm standing in the street and I'm taking a

plcture back towards Mr. Finelilo's house and what it

shows 1s his driveway, one of his cars, and there's a

yellow mark, you'll see, on the street. For some

reason, someone had already marked the gas line.

e r That yellow mark is indicative of the gas line
{moving from the street or the road in towards Mr.
‘Fineila‘s residence? |

la. That's correct, yes. Seo the yellow mark, someone

| had marxed that. Apparently there had been a One Call

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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|or something done in this area for some reason, I
ldon't know what that reason was for, but it lines up
with ~-=~- 1f you look back atlhls house, you can just
‘ba:ely see the piping for the meter, it's kind of

obscured by & bush, but right beside the car --- as

you go past the car that's in this picture, you can

see right at the house, there is a meter back there.
'S0 that's basically ir line with wherefthe gas service

goes back toward his house.

Q. Okay., If we were to walk that line, the line

being the yellow line, to Mr. Finello's home where the

meter is situated, that would be the customer service

' line?

A. For the most part, 1t would be the customer

service line after our curk valve; okay? Our curb

valve is probably somewhere in this vicinity, I don’t

know exactly where our curb valve 1s.

JUDGE NEMEC:

By this vicinity, are you indicating the

‘yellaw'dat?

'A. I don’t think that our curb valve would be sitting
| there. Okay. That it is right‘in the‘cu:b of the

)y S |

24

street.

JUDGE NEMEC:

Yes.

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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. Okay. I think it would probably be more on his

-

property someplace, but I don’t have the exact

location of it. It's not shown in this picture is

what I should be saying. We have some measurements

for it in event we would need to find it.

ATTORNEY PAYNE:

Your Honor, I'm going to pass out what we

8 |would ask to be marked as Dominion Exhibit Number Two.

JUDGE NEMEC:

Ckay. It's identified.
{Dominion Peoples Exhibit Two marked for

identification.)

'BY ATTORNEY PAYNE:

Q. And Mr. Booker, I'm going to ask you what this is

a picture of?

A. Once again, this is a picture of Mr. Finello's

 propezty, I'm taking a photograph that includes his

entire driveway and as I expanded or took a broader

shot, you're able to see on the right hand side of the

photcgraph, there’s a blue line there at the curb,
. lonce again, which shows --- normally blue is used teo
)| depict water lines, yellow is for gas lines. So there

1iska blue line there that shows where the water line

is ceming in to his property. Also this shot is

| showing, and he explained this t0~me,“that even though

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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are service line came in on the left side of his

property and it appears that we might have or would

have cracked the wing of his driveway, he explained to
me that they replaced his,dtiveway to the eXpansion‘
joints and there's like'a,’it‘s’nct a triangle
exactly, but that whole lower section of his driveway

that goes to the expansion joint along there was what

B‘he said that our contractor replaced back in 199%4.
‘And that is our procedure usually that if we crack
'somebody’s driveway, we don'iygo in and just make a
patch in the driveway, we usually go back te¢ the
'expansioﬁ joints. So that did make sense, that

followed what we wou.d have done.

Q. Okay. Is it possible Mr. Booker, I mean, just
possible that from 19984 to the present that there

could have been some other problems with the driveway

'{that may have required work done by another
Econtractcr? Just & possibility, not something that I
wouald say'occurred. |

AL I guess that's a possibility. ,Hé didn'*t indicate

 that there had been ary other work in his driveway.

21Q.  Okay.
| ATTORNEY PAYNE:
Your Honor, I'm going to ask'thatkthis
next document be identified as Dominionkaxhibit Three.

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(B14) 536-8908




sk

29

JUDGE NEMEC:

Yes, it may be so identifaied.
(Dominion Peoples Exhibit Three marked

for identification.)

BY ATTORNEY PAYNE:

Q. And Mr. Booker, could you tell us what this is a

|picture ¢£f?

A. Okay. That's another shot of his driveway. And

‘this shot basically picturecs --- I tried to focus in

on the area that he explained te me was the area that

|was replaced. And, as I said before, that would match

up with cur procedures to try and replace a section of

driveway to the expansion joints and as you <¢an see

there's a cut out section here and that looks to be a

fnew section of concrete right there. The other thing
51 that this photograph is showing is he pointed out to
'me Lhat there was a blue mark on his driveway and that

it1is the location where the water line had told hinm

where the water valve had been covered cver. And so

that's basically what this photograph shows. Also in

the street there, you can see the blue line coming

across the street that lines up with the dot.

ATTORNEY PAYNE:

One second, Your Henor.

BY ATTORNEY PAYNE:

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8808
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Q. Now Mr. Booker, after your initial investigation,
did you at sometime, subsc@uent to when the complaint
‘was filed, do any further investigation relative to

,this,matter?

A, hfter we met that day, I told him I needed to come |

back in and investigate and talk with some other
fpeépie about it and then 1 think it was shortly atter
lthat I called him and I denied his claim over the
|telephone. After he made his complaint to the PUC, we

10

did try === because of the meetings that we had in
trying to resolve this -==. |

Q. You're ta.king an‘of the settlement conferencé
that the Commission had - |

A. That's right.

Q. ~-=-= directed that we participateé in?

A. That's right. He requested that we try, and when

I say he, Mr. Finello, requested that we try to get

some information on the contractors that had done the

work in 1994, the restoration work in 1994. So I did
try to find additional information ¢r try to find some,}
inforiwmuetion period on the écntraotors that we had in
1994 and I couldn't find arything, we don’t have that
information.

~ ATTORNEY PAYNE:

Your Honor, I have no further questions.

Sargcnt s Court Reporting Sexrvice, Inc.
{B14) 536~ 8908
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JUDGE NEMEC:

Okay. Mr. Finello, your turn.

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. FINELLO:

'Q‘ Mr. Booker, when I first filed my complaint you

just denied the claim automatically; did you not? You

called me and said we're not going to do this.

A. Yes. I told you at the time, whenever I called

| you on the phone, that I didn’t think that we would
accept liability for this because of the time.

|©. And I then asked you to come --- I said, you know,

just come out and see, you know, what you've done
here?

A. Yes.

0. All right. Also, I did show you where the shut-

off valve is in the grass, we did expose that that day
when you were out there thét day? |

A. 1 doh't remember us actvally exposing it.

Q. All right. Now from this picture here to the gas

meter, would you be able to replace that linekinto my

lawn without breaking the driveway?

AL Well it depends on how they would do it. We have

two ways that they replace lines., One is they do what

they refer to as an open cut, okay, that would be that

they just go in and dig the road in order to replace

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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' the service. Another thing that they do is they

insert a smaller line and usually it's plastic, they

insert it through a larger steel line. If that steel

line went under your driveway like that; they could've
just dag a hole and there's a possibility that they
could've dug a hole right at the curve valve and over
at the main line and inserted and not had tc¢ touch
your driveway. I'm only saying that :hat‘s‘é
possibility, sir.

Q. But your records showed that they did do that work

and they did repair my driveway, you told me that one

time; did you not?
A. I was never able to find anything concerning your
driveway. I'm assuming that --- what yocu just pointed

out right now, there is a chance that your driveway

counld've been broke by us; okay? And Z*m also saving

to you that the way that we make repairs, we usually
go te an'expansion‘joint 50 there's a good chance that
this section may have been replaced by us.

Q“kbo you have any of the records of this? ©Did you
bring any of the records here today from this work

you've done on my property?

A, Yes.
C. Is there any remarks showing that they broke the

driveway?

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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A. No, sir. There wouldn't be anything like that.
The records that we maintain, the records that we
kéep, are«records concerning material‘that we use.
0. Well Gid you use plastic or metal pipe going
through there? | |
'A. Let me take a look at it and see. It?s'plastic,

' They ianstalled 34 feet of plastic tubing and that was

lone inch CTS. How that means copper tubing size,

that's all. So it was plastic pipe.
0. By those records, does it tell you whether they

fished a line through there or whether they dug it up?

LA There's nothing here that indicates --~ sometimes

3lwhat tney will show as reclaimed materiél, they’'11

show the piping that they used as conduit, you know,
they'll put the footage in there and they'1ll show it
as reclaimed material. I don‘t'seefwhere’théy,show
that on this service order. |

Q. o from those records they would have had to break
the sidewalk? ]
A. T ecouldn't say that for sure, sir, they may have.
I'm Saying to you that I don't know cne way or the

other whether they did or they didn’t. As I look at

lhow it lines up, there's a possibility that we could

have done that; okay? And I'm also saying to you that

511 realize 1t was replaced back to the expansion joint

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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and that's normally what we do. You have a new

section of driveway there that was replaced back to

the expansion joint; c¢kay? So that all looks like

things that we would've done, okay, but as far as
being able to look at some document and tell you
specifically that we did or we didn't, I'm sorry, I

|can’t tell you that. 1 don’t have that infc¢rmation,

Q. Mr. Booker, if your subcontractor installed a

‘me+er on a house, 15 years later the house blew up,

would DOminioﬁ Pecples have any liability there?

A, First off, we don't allcw subcontractors to
install meters, we install our own meters; okay?
That's the very firstc ~=-=-,

Q. If your subcontracter put a line in and the line
was faulty and a house blew up 15 years later, weuld

you have any liabilicy?

A. It would depend on the circumstances; okay? It

would depend on the circumstances of what the

investigation proved.

¢. So the passage of time has nothing to do with your
Liability?

A. I think it depends'on, once again, the

circumstances in what we're talking about. If I could

just state one thing. As far as my understanding in

5| these things, okay, as I handle claims, okay, and I

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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think this does go to the point of what yoﬁ‘re asking

as far as like the passing of time, as I handle

claims, periodically 1 get claims that involve damage

to sanitary sewage lines; okay? And there have been

instances where sanitary sewer line --- where our

lines were put in possibly five or ten years, okay,

before and people will report a problem with their

sanitary sewer line; okay? 3Because a sanitary sewer

|line is buried and there's no way for a person to

actually know what's going on, they don’t know 1f it’s

a root, they don't know what the problem is; okay?
When they report that to us, okay, that's whenever ---

this is my understanding, that’s whenever the statute

of limitation begins to run, whkenever they become

aware of it and they bring it to our attention. And
the reason for that is because it's something that

they had no way of knowing, okay, it's buried; okay?

Something that's open and cbvious, okay, that's on the
'surface and that someone can see it's not, at least

from my standpoint as I handle‘claims, I do look at it

differently; okay?

Q. Just another situation. I mean, say your
subcontractor --- you have this map that you use to
mark underground lines. |

A. Okay.

Sargent’s Court‘Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908 ‘ ;
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Q. Everything you do is marked out; right? You know
exactly where all your underground lines are?

A. We do have =--.

o And document?

A. We do. We do have maps. We have a mapping system

and we have all of that, but we doﬁ‘t allow our
contractors or any contractor to gc just by the maps.
What we regquire is that people, anybody thaé's'going
to do any digging any place, is reguired to <all

| Pennsylvania One Call and we have somebody come out
and locate the lines. We don't warnt anybody just to

1reiy on the maps on the mappihg system; okay? The

maps are used as a kind of like a guide, but before
anybody does any digging we expect them to put it on

Pennsylvania One Call so that they'll know exactly

‘where those lines are because someone has to come out
and actually locate them to know where those lines

are, not just go by the maps.

Q. And it is your contention that ycur subcontractors

wouid restore something to --~ it's your company

policy, if something was improperly installed from the
beginning, your subcontractor would reinstall it
properly; is that what you're telling me? 1Is it in

your company policy?

A. OQur policy is to try to get our customer's

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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property back to the same condition that we fournd it

lin, as close as we can. We try to restore our

customer's property as close as we can to the

condition that we initially found it in,'that is our

|policy. )
0. But you said to me that they probably found the

curb box buried; did you not say that? And then he

reburied it: did you not tell me that?

A. What I said was, if I could just state it in my

lown words; okay? And that is that it would be my

position that they never saw a curb box there period.

 They wouldn't have found it, they wouldn't havé been
zlooking for it. Okay. Their charge was or their
' xesponsibility was to replace the section of driveway
that we damaged s¢ they would've come dut, they
{wcjld’ve'jack hanmered that driveway, c¢leaned :nat
out, they would've done their job as far as like
.jrepiacing it with stone and whatnot. If they saw a
curb box sticking up then they would have made sure
that it was still obvious; okay? But If they never
saw a curb valve sticking up then they would have just |
' done their work ard put it back. |
Q. S0 they would've buried a curb box, that’d been
{your company policy to reinstall it improperly?

|A. No. They would not even kaow that a water curb

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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‘bokaas there if they didn’t see it. What T'm trying
to tell you, siz, if it was already buried whenever
they got there, okay, and buried below the depth that
kthey g0 to‘méke the repairs to the driveway, okay,

thar they would have just done their job, okay, and

‘| they wouldn't have bothered to uncover it. They

‘wouldn't have gone locking for a water curb box unless

8lit was all ready visible. If it was already visible

or if it became visible during their’work, then they

{would've exposed it, they would've left it exposed;

okay? But they're not going to go in and look for a

|water box.

Q. Did you interview the contréctor that did this
work? ; |

A. Mo, I didn't. I don't even know who the
contractor was that did this Qork"

MR. FINELLO:

I'm done, Your Honor.

cUDGE _NEMEC:

I think I have just one guestion, Mr.
Booker. Thirty-four ({34} feet of plastic pipe, could

' that have been to reline or to carry the gas line from

|the opposite side of the road to the curb box?

A, Yes, sir.

CUDGE NEMEC:

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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T mean 1t wouldn't have been on Mr.

{Finello's property?

A. That's right. That 34 feet was the piping that

went under the road. From the main line on the

opposite side of the street, it would have went under
the road.

JUDGE NEMEC:

To the curb box wherever it is on his

property?

A, The curb box on his property.

JUDGE NEMEC:

I wasn't sure that was ¢clear.

MR. FINELLO:

Your Honor, one more thing. [ mean, when

o

Mr. Booker come to my house, I uncovered the shut-off

valve for the gas. It’s right here on the lawn and I

showed it to him that day. 1It's about three feet

inside ---.

JUDGE;NEMEC:

What exhibit number is that? Is that thé
first one?

MR. FINELLO:

The first one, Your Honor.

JUDGE NEMEC:

Yes.

uargent 5 Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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MR. FINELLO:

When he come to my house ---.

JUDGE NEMEC:

Waizy. You're pointing to where the S

MR. FINELLO:

Bis shut-cff valve.
© JUDGE NEMEC:
“~~.yellowvline,come to the diagonal
line? |

MR. FINELLO:

The gas line runs underneath my driveway

and the shut-cff valve is in my lawn.

JUDGE NEMEC:
MR. FINELLO:

and that's where it sits and they had to
do this. They had to break the sidewalk to do this.

JUDGE NEMEC:

Okay. The triangular portion of the

sidewalk?

MR. FINELLC:

Yes. 1It's called an apron.

JUDGE NEMEC:

Se¢ in your guestioning when you were

talkxing about the curb box, you were talking about the

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
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gas curb box?

MR. FINELLO:

The gas curp box. It's in my lawn and

| they ¢racked my driveway, they had to break up my

driveway, ano I was nice about it, T didn't ~=~- you

 know, do what you got to do. I'm jﬁs: asking them to

restore it to its original conditicn.

JUDGE NEMEC:

Ckay. Bnd your testimony also is that

the water valve was exposed at the time pricr to the

repaving?

MR. FINELLO:

‘Absolutelyy

JUDGE NEMEC:

"And of course it is not now. And your
 testimony, T assume, is that it was located where the

municipal authority or whoever it is =--.

MR. FINELLO:

They use a device to find it. They use
some electronic device to find it.

JUDGE NEMEC:

Yes. It is & municipal authority or =-=7?

MR, FINELLO:

Yes. It's Shaler Water Authority.

JUDGE NEMEC:

Sargent’s Court Reporting Serwvice, Inc.
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Did they indicate that they wduid make
the opening and ---?

MR. FINELLO:

No.
JUDGE NEMEC:

No?

MR. FINELLO:

No. They toid me, you know, I have to

‘have it c¢pened. It's my responsibility. But I can

‘assure you 100 percent, there was a shut-off valve in

|that driveway before they replaced it.

CUDGE NEMEC:

Okay. Anything else?
ATTORNEY PAYNE:

I believe not, Your Honor.

JUDGE NEMEC:

Okay.

ATTORNEY PAYNE:

Your Honor, I would just ask that thess

fexnibits be moved into the record.

JUDGE NEMEC:

Okay. Any ob“ecticns to the exhibits?

MR. FINELLO:

No.

JUDGE NEMEC:

42
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Domirion Exhibits One, Two and Three are

admitted. Mr. Finello, anything else you'd like to

add? I said you get the last say.

MR. FINELLO:

Your Honor, listen, you know, T don't
want to be here, honestly. This costs more than it

would cost them to have someone come out and cut a

curb feet in there. You know, I just want them to

restore ny property as they found it and the fact that
they tell me that if there was no curb feet in there,

they would have reburied it, that coesn't even make

sense. You know, and I'm just going to tell you there

was a curb feet before they put that driveway in..

CUDGE NEMEC:

I'm sure to you, sir, it looks like a

| very straightforward matter. Commission has
jurisdiction over service. Service is a very broad
term, you know, service provided by Public Utility.

'The guestion I have to determine initially in this

case is whether what was dene here comes under the

definition of service. 1If I find that that's the

case, then I have to.decide what's the responsibility

of the Utility with regard to your claim. If I find

that what was done here does not come under the

Commission's definition of service, than what you were

Sargent’s Court Reporting Service, Inc.
(814) 536-8908 ,




10|

11
12
13
14

15|
16|
171

18

199

20

told earlier about taking your claim to Common EBleas

Court, for example, or to a magistrate or whatever,

that would probably be true. It's not a cut and dry,

open and shut matter unfortunately, I wish it were.

It's an interesting factual situation and it's a

difficult factual situation; okay? My job is to take

the record we've made here, prepare an initial
Decision, you'll receive tha? in the meil, either
party who disagrees with any of the findings or

conclusions that I reach can file exceptions. If you

file exceptions, it requires the entire matter to be

reviewed by the Commission. Any questions? Okay.
Thark you very much.

MR. FINEBELLO:

Thank you.
JUDGE NEMEC:

The hearing's concluded and vou're
adjourned.

ATTORNEY PAYNE:

Thank you, Your Honor.
e ke R R kL kR
BEARING CONCLUDED AT 10:49 A.M.

* koom ok ok kR
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